Solicitation No. AHRQ-05-0013 




Amendment 0002

The following amendment is issued for the following reasons:

1.  To respond to questions received by potential offerors.

2.  To revise the following sections of the RFP:

a. Section I: 
· Due to FAC 2005-04, Clauses 52.215-18 and 52.219-4 should now be dated (JUL 2005).
· Remove Clauses 52.215.10 and 52.215.12.  See Question #26 for further detail.

b. Section G.4 Information on Vouchers: 

· Revise:  (1) The Contractor is required to include the following minimum information on vouchers:

· Revise:  (2) (a) Direct Labor – include all persons, listing the person’s name, title, number of hours or days worked, hourly rate (unburdened), the total cost per person and a total amount of this category.

· Add: (2) (l) Current amount billed by individual cost element and total dollar amount and cumulative amount billed by individual cost element and total dollar amount.

c. Section K

· Remove Section K.5 – Certificate of Current Cost or Pricing Data (FAR 15.406-2).
3.  To include the Interested Parties/Bidders List (Attachment 1).
The date and time set for the receipt of proposals is NOT changed and remains 12:00 p.m. (Noon) local time on Thursday, August 11, 2005.

Technical Questions/Responses for RFP AHRQ-05-0013

1) Can you tell me the place of performance for this requirement?
The work will be performed at the contractors facility.

2) Please confirm that the information requested in L.9(1) of the attached solicitation pertains to the project PI and not the organization as a whole.
For the purpose of Past Performance Information, contracts listed in the proposal should be for the organization, not for individual staff.

3) In the RFP under section L.10, part B, subpart g, page 82, it states that the recommended goal is 23% for small businesses.  However, on Attachment 4, page 100 of the RFP, 30% is listed as the goal.  Please clarify the appropriate goal. 
Please use the goals listed in Section L.10 on page 82 - 23% for Small Businesses which shall include 5% SDB, 5% WOSB, 2% HUBZone, and 3% VOSB.
4) In Section C, Task 7.1, page 13: Once the assessment criteria are developed with support from outside experts in information architecture and presentation does AHRQ require or desire that outside experts also be involved in applying the criteria to evaluate the information products or will AHRQ and contractor use of the criteria be sufficient?
AHRQ expects that the contractor will consult with outside experts during the development process to facilitate the application of the criteria by a broader audience.

5) Task 8 of the solicitation involves developing a number of health care information products.  What is the plan for the Agency’s and the contractor’s roles in updating, appending or de-commissioning the information products when new evidence becomes available after the initial release? 

The Contractor will work in collaboration with the Resource Center, EPCs, DEcIDE, and AHRQ as systematic reviews and other science products are updated or archived to ensure that information products reflect these activities.

6) Task 10. Requires collaborative work with the Office of Communications and Knowledge Transfer (OCKT) to ensure that efforts to disseminate research findings are coordinated with other Agency activities. 

a. Does AHRQ have dissemination metrics such as “the number of patients using the information product” to assess the effectiveness of the dissemination effort? 

AHRQ does not have dissemination metrics established to assess the effectiveness of this project.  It is anticipated that metrics will be established early in the project’s timeline and made available to the contractor and other collaborators.

b. To what extent would OCKT and AHRQ value cooperative agreements with health plans, hospitals or clinics to push the research findings to patients who are facing decisions that could be informed by the research? 
AHRQ has a long history of collaborating with health plans, hospitals, and other participants in the health care system to enhance the transfer of research findings to decision makers.  AHRQ values this approach as a mechanism to increase the use of scientific information at the point of decision making.
7) In Section L.8.C.2., an explanation is required if full time core personnel are less than 70/30.  Can you define core personnel? Does the 70% include all core personnel, including any core personnel from the prime and subcontractor's staff or only core personnel from the prime contractor's staff?  Does the 70/30 apply to all staff listed or only core personnel?

Core personnel are those personnel at the prime contractor whose functions are integral for the successful completion of the requirements of the solicitation.  If a ratio of less than 70 percent full time core staff located at the prime contractor to 30 percent consultants/subcontractors is proposed, the offeror shall provide a detailed explanation of how the proposed staffing plan ensures that the work is conducted by individuals with a mastery of the technical requirements of the Statement of Work.
8) What are the small business size standards applicable to the NAICS code referenced for this solicitation?   Do small, non-profit organizations qualify as small businesses?  

The small business size standard for the NAICS Code 541611 is $6.0 million.  To be eligible for award as a small business, an offeror must represent in good faith that it is a small business at the time of its written representation. An offeror may represent that it is a small business concern in connection with a specific solicitation if it meets the definition of a small business concern applicable to the solicitation and has not been determined by the Small Business Administration (SBA) to be other than a small business.
9) Please clarify whether the requirement for a goal of 23% for small business participation in Section L.10.B.g. is based on 23% of total subcontracting dollars, or 23% of the total contract value.  

As stated in Section L.10.B.g., the small business subcontracting goals are requested to be provided as a percentage of total planned subcontract dollars for the base period (base period for this solicitation is 2 years).  

10)  Section L.8.C.2 and M.3.D seem to imply that the percentage of staff who are subcontractors or consultants may be considered a weakness (see.), yet healthy subcontracting goals and small business involvement is required in Section L.10.B. and evaluation points are assigned to the subcontracting plan as well.

We encourage the use of subcontractors and consultants in meeting small business subcontracting goals.
11)  Section L.11.6 instructs offerors to state subcontracting targets in terms of dollars and percentage of total contract value.  Subcontracting Plans, including the template attached to the RFP, require such targets to be based on total dollar and percentage of total subcontracting dollars.  Further, required annual and semi-annual reports are also based on percentage of planned subcontracting dollars.  Please clarify how you would like the subcontracting goals to be computed.

The Small Business Subcontracting Plan that is submitted as a section of the Business Proposal shall show it’s stated goals, as listed in Section L.10.B.g., as a percentage of total planned subcontract dollars.  The Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan shall be submitted separately (original and 3 copies) and shall include targets for participating SDB concerns as a percentage of the total contract value.
12) Section L.10.A. 1. requests labor rates for "on-site" and full-time personnel?  What does "on-site" mean in this context?  

“On-Site” in this context means at the contractors facility.
13) There is no Conflict of Interest clause.  Are the Evidence Based Practice Center Grantees allowed to compete for this procurement?

The AHRQ Evidence-Based Practice Centers are contractors, not grantees, and yes, they are allowed to compete for this procurement.
14) Do you require a past performance questionnaire for ALL of our active contracts or just relevant projects from the Division of our company in which the work would be done?  ALL contracts would inundate AHRQ with hundreds of completed past performance questionnaires. Do you also want each subcontractor to provide their list of ALL active contracts?

Please reference contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three years and include recently completed and ongoing work directly related to the requirements of this acquisition.
15) Please clarify: You request previous experience with “… Maintaining Web Pages within the AHRQ Web site”.  Does this preclude bidders who have not previously had AHRQ contracts?

No.
16) Regarding Task 15
a. Task 15.1 which discusses MMA and peer review:  Does this suggest some type of automated workflow requirement:  e.g., a user posts a document and someone from the Resource Center provides feedback?
No.  The Web pages are intended to allow public comment on systematic reviews, potential topics for research on effectiveness and comparative effectiveness, and access to completed documents.
b. Subtask 15.1 states "Migrate the MMA web activities from the Resource Center to the Decision Sciences Center". 

· What are the current MMA activities of the Resource Center?

· How are the current web pages that support a Resource Center’s MMA web activities implemented? 
· What systems and software architectures are currently in use?  
· How much storage/data capacity does the Resource Center's current MMA web activities require? 
The Resource Center provides methodological support to the Evidence-based Practice Centers and solicits public input on topics for further study.  The current Web pages are in development.  The systems and software architectures are compatible with the requirements of Task 15 in this solicitation.  The current storage and data capacity are low.

17) Regarding Section 15.2: concerning system security:
a. What is the security classification of the system, according to the Federal Information Processing Standards 199 (FIPS 199)?

Low.

b. Related to security requirements, is an intrusion detection system required (as opposed to simply monitoring web logs)?

Yes.
c. Subtask 15.2 states "the Contractor shall provide a system that maximizes security and data privacy": will sensitive data that is subject to HIPPA or other regulations be stored on the system (patient data, medical records etc.)?   The nature of the data stored on the system will significantly influence the system design with respect to security and contingency plans.
Sensitive data that is subject to HIPPA or other regulations will not be stored on the system.

18) Regarding Section 15.4: Some clarification on the email requirements would be helpful. Re-reading the first sentence in this section suggests that you require an email address (e.g., info@AHRQ.DSC.gov) that would just re-direct questions.  Is this the correct assumption?

The e-mail address will re-direct questions to the contractor who is expected to provide responses to each inquiry and maintain a comprehensive log of all contacts and actions taken.

19) Are the target audiences (patients, providers, and policymakers) weighted equally in terms of product development priority? 

Development priority for the various target audiences will be contingent upon the topic, and other factors. Development priorities will be determined in consultation with AHRQ.
20) What is the role of the EPCs and DRCs in this procurement?  Are they precluded from bidding on this? 

The EPCs and DRCs will provide the scientific evidence that will be translated into products for patients, providers and policymakers and the public.  No, they are not precluded from bidding on this solicitation.
21) Do you intend to have orals?  If so, when will qualified offerors be notified of their participation in orals and when would they be scheduled? 
No, we do not intend to conduct oral presentations.
22) The cover letter references two proposal due dates: August 2nd and August 11th.  Please confirm the correct due date and time for proposal submission.

As stated in Amendment #1, the proposal due date/time is August 11, 2005, 12:00 noon local time.
23) Ref: Subtasks 11.4 and 14.2, which calls for the conduct of working group meetings, and Task 12, which requires the planning of two symposiums annually.  
a. Could the Government provide an anticipated timeframe for these meetings and, in particular, for the symposiums (eg: one week in duration)? 
AHRQ anticipates a 1 day meeting for the White Paper series activity.  For the purposes of responding to this procurement, offerors should assume symposiums will be two days in length.

b. Is the contractor expected to provide and pay for through this contract the facilities and catering for these group meetings and symposiums? 
Yes.

c. If so, can the Government provide more detail about what costs we are expected to cover (eg: travel and lodging costs for the attendees and/or speakers; any stipends/honorarium for speakers?) 
The contractor will be expected to pay travel and per diem costs consistent with Federal Travel Regulations for speakers and invited participants.  Speakers will not be paid honorarium or stipends but may be reimbursed for development of scholarly papers. Attendees at the symposium will be responsible for their own costs.

d. In addition, is there a preferred location for these events to be hosted?

No.  Location will be determined in consultation with AHRQ.
24) Ref: Subtask 13.1, which states that the product or activity should fill a gap and be relevant to the audience. 
a. Have existing gaps already been identified?
No.

b. Have under-served audiences already been identified?

No.

25) Ref: Task 14, which states that the algorithm will serve as a platform from which other organizations and programs can adapt to satisfy their specific needs…  Are these organizations and programs internal and/or external to AHRQ?

The organizations and programs are external to AHRQ.
26) This RFP is requesting certified cost and pricing data.  In light of the fact that adequate price competition is anticipated, would the Government consider waiving such a requirement in accordance with FAR 15.403-1, and accordingly remove from the RFP the following clauses:  FAR 52.215-10, FAR 52.215-12 and Section K.5, FAR 15.406-2?


The Government will waive the requirements for certified cost and pricing data at this time.  However, if during negotiations the Contracting Officer determines that it is necessary to obtain certified cost and pricing data the offeror shall be required to comply with this request.
27)
May contractors propose Facilities Capital Cost of Money (FCCM) and negotiate inclusion of the FAR clause 52.215-16 FCCM as a replacement for FAR 15.215-17 Waiver of FCCM?



Yes.
28)
Ref: L.8 C. Management Plan, subparagraph 7.  We assume that the signed agreement/letter of commitment is for any contingent or pending employee hires of the Prime Contractor, not for independent consultants or subcontractor employees.  Please confirm.


If independent consultants or subcontractor employees will play a substantial critical role in successfully meeting the requirements of this procurement, the offeror should obtain the appropriate documentation of intent.

29)
L.10, A.1, requests that contractors propose “on-site and full-time” rates, yet L.8, E. states that the offeror must have adequate facilities, space and equipment for the project.  
a. Could the Government clarify where performance is expected to occur: Government or contractor site? 
Contractor Site.

b. If at the Government site, can you confirm that this will be at the AHRQ location in Rockville and how many contractor positions would you expect to perform at that location? 
N/A
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